

**AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AND REENACT THE FLUVANNA COUNTY CODE IN
CHAPTER 2, ARTICLE 2, SECTIONS 2-2-3, 2-2-4, AND 2-2-6 CONCERNING
REAPPORTIONMENT OF ELECTION DISTRICTS**

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE FLUVANNA BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, as follows:

- (1) That the County Code be, and it is hereby, amended and reenacted, in Chapter 2, Article 2, Sections 2-2-3, 2-2-4, and 2-2-6, as follows:

Article 2. Election Districts.

Sec. 2-2-1. Created and established.

Pursuant to authority contained in Title 24.2, Ch. 3, Article 2.1, Sections 24.2-304.1, *ff.*, and Title 24.2, Ch. 3, Article 3, Sections 24.2-305, *ff.*, of the Code of Virginia, the election districts and their respective polling places for the county are hereby created and established as set forth in this article. (Min. Bk. 6, pp. 482-484; Comp. 1974, ch. 2; Ord. 7-1-81; Ord. 5-15-91; Ord. 5-16-01)

Sec. 2-2-2. Magisterial districts unaffected by article; representation to be by election district.

The magisterial districts of the county, with boundary lines and names thereof respectively as constituted and known on the day before the ordinance from which this article derives took effect, shall remain the same, but representation on the governing body shall be by election districts described in this article. (Min. Bk. 6, pp. 482-484; Comp. 1974, ch. 2; Ord. 7-1-81; Ord. 5-15-91; Ord. 5-16-01)

Sec. 2-2-3. Districts enumerated; populations and polling places; precincts.¹

- (a) The election districts, with populations and polling places set forth, are as follows:

<i>Name</i>	<i>Population</i>	<i>Polling Place</i>
Palmyra	3467 5355	Palmyra Fire House ²
Columbia	3255 5187	Kents Store Agricultural Recreation Center ³
Fork Union	3204 4650	Fluvanna County Community Center
Cunningham	3372 5229	Antioch Baptist Church ⁴
Rivanna	6749 5270	Lake Monticello Fire & Reseue Building Lake Monticello Clubhouse

¹ For state law as to central absentee voter precinct, see Code of Va., § 24.2-712.

² Change in Palmyra polling place was adopted 11-15-06; federal preclearance was obtained 1-29-07.

³ Change in Columbia polling place was adopted 6-15-05; federal preclearance was obtained 9-2-05.

⁴ Change in Cunningham polling place was adopted 7-18-07; federal preclearance was obtained 9-5-07.

(b) Precincts shall be known by their respective polling places and shall be coterminous with the respective electoral districts. ~~, except that, for the Rivanna District, there shall be two precincts, as follows:~~

~~(1) Lake Monticello Fire and Rescue Precinct shall be that portion of the Rivanna District southerly from a line running from the intersection of Jefferson Drive and South Bearwood Drive; thence along South Bearwood Drive in a northerly direction to the intersection of South Bearwood Drive and Kingswood Road; thence along Kingswood Road to its terminus and continuing in a direct line easterly to the center of Lake Monticello; thence along the center of Lake Monticello in an easterly direction to a direct line, the northerly extension of Chatham Lane; thence in a southerly direction along Chatham Lane to its intersection with Woodridge Road; thence along Woodridge Road in an easterly direction to its intersection with Jefferson Drive; thence in a westerly direction along Jefferson Drive to its intersection with Slice Road; thence along Slice Road in an easterly direction to the intersection with State Route 600 (South Boston Road);~~

~~(2) Lake Monticello Clubhouse Precinct shall be that portion of the Rivanna District northerly from the line described in the preceding subsection.~~

(c) In addition to the foregoing precincts, there is hereby established a central absentee voting precinct, which shall be in the Historic Courthouse⁵, Palmyra, Virginia. The central absentee voting precinct shall be used for all elections.

(Min. Bk. 6, pp. 482-484; Comp. 1974, ch. 2; Ord. 7-1-81; Ord. 5-15-91; Ord. 1-18-95; Ord. 5-16-01; Ord. 3-20-02; Ord. 11-15-06; Ord. 7-18-07; Ord. 2-18-09)

Sec. 2-2-4. District boundaries.

The boundaries of the respective election districts are as set forth below:

Palmyra Election District - Number 1.

~~Beginning at the intersection of the Rivanna River and the Albemarle County border and following the Rivanna River in a southeasterly direction until its intersection with the northerly border of Census Block 2034 to the intersection of Route 600 (South Boston Road), Fluvanna-Albemarle County line and Route 53 (Thomas Jefferson Parkway) and following Route 53 (Thomas Jefferson Parkway) in an easterly direction to its intersection with Route 618 (Lake Monticello Road), thence in a northerly direction with Route 618 (Lake Monticello Road) approximately 2400 feet to its intersection with the eastern property line of 557 Jefferson Drive (Tax Map Parcel 18A-5-235), thence in a southeasterly direction with the property line of 557 Jefferson Drive (Tax Map Parcel 18A-5-235) to the intersection of Jefferson Drive and Lafayette~~

⁵ Change in central absentee voting precinct was adopted 2-18-09; federal preclearance was obtained 5-5-09.

Drive,⁶ thence in an easterly direction with Jefferson Drive to its intersection with Slice Road, thence in an easterly direction with Slice Road to its intersection with Route 600 (South Boston Road) and following Route 600 (South Boston Road) in a southerly direction to its intersection with Route 53 (Thomas Jefferson Parkway), following Route 53 (Thomas Jefferson Parkway) in an easterly direction to its intersection with Route 15 (James Madison Highway), following Route 15 (James Madison Highway) in a northerly direction to its intersection with the northern edge of census block 1067, thence in an easterly direction with the northern edge of census block 1067 to its intersection with Burke Creek, a tributary of the Rivanna River, and following Burke Creek in an easterly direction to its intersection with the Rivanna River, thence in a southeasterly direction with the Rivanna River to its intersection with Route 15 (James Madison Highway) and following Route 15 (James Madison Highway) in a northerly direction to its intersection with Route 644 (Salem Church Road), thence in a northerly direction with Route 644 (Salem Church Road) to its intersection with Route 616 (Union Mills Road), thence in an easterly direction with Route 616 (Union Mills Road) to its intersection with Route 15 (James Madison Highway),⁷ thence in a northerly direction with Route 15 (James Madison Highway) to its intersection with Route 631 (Troy Road), thence in a westerly direction with Route 631 (Troy Road) to its intersection with Wounded Knee Lane, thence in a northerly direction with Wounded Knee Lane to its intersection with Ghost Dance Lane and following Ghost Dance Lane in a northerly direction to its intersection with Route 631 (Troy Road), thence in a northerly direction with Route 631 (Troy Road) to its intersection with Route 250 (Richmond Road), thence in a westerly direction with Route 250 (Richmond Road) to its intersection with Prison Lane, thence in a southerly direction with Prison Lane to its intersection with census block 2059 and following census block 2059 to its intersection with Prison Lane, thence in a northerly direction with Prison Lane to its intersection with Route 250 (Richmond Road) and following Route 250 (Richmond Road) in a westerly direction to its intersection with Route 627 (Zion Road), thence in a northeasterly direction with Route 627 (Zion Road) to its intersection with Edd Ridge Lane, thence in a northerly direction with Edd Ridge Lane to its intersection with Cedar Ridge Road, thence in a northerly direction with Cedar Ridge Road to its intersection with the Fluvanna-Louisa County line, thence in a westerly direction following with the Fluvanna-Louisa County line, then in a southerly direction following to its intersection with the Fluvanna-Albemarle County line, thence in a southerly direction with the Fluvanna-Albemarle County line to its intersection with the Rivanna River, Route 53 (Thomas Jefferson Parkway), the point of beginning.

Columbia Election District - Number 2.

Beginning at the intersection of Route 15 (James Madison Highway) and Route 601 (Courthouse Road) near Palmyra and following Route 15 (James Madison Highway) in a

⁶ Editor's Note – the original contained an incorrect statement of the written description of the boundaries of the Palmyra Election District regarding a portion of the boundary between the Palmyra and Rivanna Election Districts. The editor has deleted the following to correct this clerical error: “thence in a southeasterly direction with Lafayette Drive to its intersection with Northwood Road, thence in a southerly direction with Northwood Road to its intersection with Jefferson Drive”.

⁷ Editor's Note – the original omitted a portion of the boundary between the Palmyra and Columbia Election Districts from the written description of the boundaries of the Palmyra Election District. The editor has inserted the following to correct this clerical error: “Route 644 (Salem Church Road), thence in a northerly direction with Route 644 (Salem Church Road) to its intersection with Route 616 (Union Mills Road), thence in an easterly direction with Route 616 (Union Mills Road) to its intersection with Route 15 (James Madison Highway)”.

northerly direction to its intersection with Route 644 (Salem Church Road), thence in a northerly direction with Route 644 (Salem Church Road) to its intersection with Route 616 (Union Mills Road), thence in an easterly direction with Route 616 (Union Mills Road) to its intersection with Route 15 (James Madison Highway), thence in a northerly direction with Route 15 (James Madison Highway) to its intersection with Route 631 (Troy Road), thence in a westerly direction with Route 631 (Troy Road) to its intersection with Wounded Knee Lane, thence in a northerly direction with Wounded Knee Lane to its intersection with Ghost Dance Lane and following Ghost Dance Lane in a northerly direction to its intersection with Route 631 (Troy Road), thence in a northerly direction with Route 631 (Troy Road) to its intersection with Route 250 (Richmond Road), thence in a westerly direction with Route 250 (Richmond Road) to its intersection with Prison Lane, thence in a southerly direction with Prison Lane to its intersection with census block 2059 and following census block 2059 to its intersection with Prison Lane, thence in a northerly direction with Prison Lane to its intersection with Route 250 (Richmond Road), thence in a westerly direction with Route 250 (Richmond Road) to its intersection with Route 627 (Zion Road), thence in a northeasterly direction with Route 627 (Zion Road) to its intersection with Edd Ridge Lane and following Edd Ridge Lane in a northerly direction to its intersection with Cedar Ridge Road, thence in a northerly direction with Cedar Ridge Road to its intersection with the Fluvanna-Louisa County line ; ~~thence in an~~ and following the Fluvanna-Louisa County line in an easterly direction with ~~the Fluvanna-Louisa line~~ to its intersection with the Fluvanna-Goochland County line, thence in a southerly direction with the Fluvanna-Goochland County line to its intersection with the James River, ~~on the east side of the Town of Columbia;~~ and following the James River in a westerly direction to its intersection with the Rivanna River, thence up the Rivanna River to U. S. Route 15 (James Madison Highway); ~~thence in a northerly direction with Route 15 (James Madison Highway) to its intersection with the Fluvanna-Louisa County line,~~ thence in a northwesterly direction with the Rivanna River for approximately one and one-half miles to a northeasterly bend in the Rivanna River, thence around the bend and continuing in a northeasterly direction for approximately 4,200 feet to the intersection with the boundary line dividing Tax Map Parcel 54-11-Y and Tax Map Parcel 54-11-X, also known as the northern edge of the Columbia growth area as set forth in the Fluvanna County Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map, thence in a southeasterly direction with the boundary line dividing Tax Map Parcel 54-11-Y and Tax Map Parcel 54-11-X to its intersection with the power line right-of-way, thence in a northeasterly direction with the power line right-of-way to its intersection with Route 659 (Stage Junction Road), thence in a northerly direction with Route 659 (Stage Junction Road) to its intersection with Route 608 (Wilmington Road), thence in a westerly direction with Route 608 (Wilmington Road) to its intersection with Route 601 (Courthouse Road) and following Route 601 (Courthouse Road) in a westerly direction to its intersection with Route 15 (James Madison Highway) near Palmyra, the point of beginning.

Fork Union Election District - Number 3.

~~Beginning at the common corner of the counties of Fluvanna, Cumberland and Goochland east to the Town of Columbia; thence up the James River to its intersection with Rockfish Creek; thence up Rockfish Creek to its intersection with the southerly border of Census Block 2003; thence along the southerly border of Census Block 2003 in a westerly direction to its intersection with State Route 646 (Hardware Road); thence in a northerly direction along Route 646 (Hardware Road) to its intersection with State Route 6 (West River Road); thence in a northeasterly direction along Route 6 (West River Road) to its intersection with the westerly~~

boundary of Census Block 2002; thence with the westerly boundary of Census Block 2002 in a southerly direction to its intersection with State Route 697 (Cunningham Road); thence along Route 697 (Cunningham Road) in an easterly direction to its intersection with State Route 640 (Cunningham Road); thence along Route 640 (Cunningham Road) in an easterly direction to its intersection with State Route 6 (West River Road); thence along Route 6 (West River Road) in an easterly direction to its intersection with State Route 640 (Haden Martin Road); thence in a northerly direction with State Route 640 (Haden Martin Road) to its intersection with U. S. Route 15 (James Madison Highway); *Beginning at the intersection of Route 15 (James Madison Highway) and the Rivanna River near Palmyra and following the Rivanna River in a northwesterly direction to its intersection with Burke Creek near Pleasant Grove, thence in a westerly direction with Burke Creek to its intersection with the northern edge of census block 1067 and following the northern edge of census block 1067 in a westerly direction to its intersection with Route 600 (South Boston Road), thence in a southerly direction with Route 600 (South Boston Road) to its intersection with Route 53 (Thomas Jefferson Parkway), thence in an easterly direction with Route 53 (Thomas Jefferson Parkway) to its intersection with Route 619 (Ruritan Lake Road) and following Route 619 (Ruritan Lake Road) in a westerly direction to its intersection with the Cunningham Creek, thence in a westerly direction with Cunningham Creek to its intersection with the power line right-of-way and following the power line right-of-way in a southeasterly direction to its intersection with Route 693 (Bell Farms Lane), thence in a southwesterly direction with Route 693 (Bells Farm Lane) to its intersection with Route 639 (Long Acre Road) and following Route 639 (Long Acre Road) in a southeasterly direction to its intersection with Haislip Lane, thence in a southwesterly direction with Haislip Lane to its intersection with Route 620 (Rolling Road) and following Route 620 (Rolling Road) in a westerly direction to its intersection with Route 669 (Kidds Dairy Road), thence in a southerly direction with Route 669 (Kidds Dairy Road) to its intersection with Windy Ridge Lane and following Windy Ridge Lane in a southerly direction to its intersection with the Hardware River, thence in a southerly direction with the Hardware River thence in a northerly direction with U.S. Route 15 (James Madison Highway) to its intersection with the Rivanna River; thence in an easterly direction with the Rivanna River to its intersection with the James River and following the James River in an easterly direction to its intersection with the Rivanna River, thence in a northwesterly direction with the Rivanna River for approximately one and one-half miles to a northeasterly bend in the Rivanna River, thence around the bend and continuing in a northeasterly direction for approximately 4,200 feet to the intersection with the boundary line dividing Tax Map Parcel 54-11-Y and Tax Map Parcel 54-11-X, also known as the northern edge of the Columbia growth area as set forth in the Fluvanna County Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map, thence in a southeasterly direction with the boundary line dividing Tax Map Parcel 54-11-Y and Tax Map Parcel 54-11-X to its intersection with the power line right-of-way, thence in a northeasterly direction with the power line right-of-way to its intersection with Route 659 (Stage Junction Road), thence in a northerly direction with Route 659 (Stage Junction Road) to its intersection with Route 608 (Wilmington Road), thence in a westerly direction with Route 608 (Wilmington Road) to its intersection with Route 601 (Courthouse Road), thence in a westerly direction with Route 601 (Courthouse Road) to its intersection with Route 15 (James Madison Highway) and following Route 15 (James Madison Highway) in a southerly direction to its intersection with the Rivanna River near Palmyra, ~~thence down the James River, to the point of beginning.~~*

Cunningham Election District - Number 4.

Beginning at the intersection of the James River and Rockfish Creek; thence up the James River to its intersection with the intersection of the Fluvanna-Albemarle County line at Scottsville; thence in a northerly direction with the Fluvanna-Albemarle County line to its intersection with and Route 53 (Thomas Jefferson Parkway) and following Route 53 (Thomas Jefferson Parkway) in an easterly direction to its intersection with Boston Creek; thence along Boston Creek in an easterly direction to its intersection with Jefferson Drive; thence along Jefferson Drive in a southerly direction to its intersection with Turkeysag Trail; thence along Turkeysag Trail in a southerly direction to its intersection with Windy Way; thence along Windy Way in a northerly direction to its intersection with Bridlewood Drive; thence along Bridlewood Drive in a southerly direction to its intersection with Turkeysag Trail; thence along Turkeysag Trail in a westerly direction to its intersection with Route 53 (Thomas Jefferson Parkway); thence along Route 53 (Thomas Jefferson Parkway) in an easterly direction to its intersection with U. S. Route 15 (James Madison Highway); thence in a southerly direction with Route 15 (James Madison Highway) to its intersection with State Route 640 (Haden Martin Road); thence in a southerly direction with Route 640 (Haden Martin Road) to its intersection with State Route 6 (West River Road); thence along Route 6 (West River Road) in a westerly direction to its intersection with State Route 640 (Cunningham Road); thence along Route 640 (Cunningham Road) in a westerly direction to its intersection with State Route 697 (Cunningham Road); thence along Route 697 (Cunningham Road) in a westerly direction to its intersection with the westerly boundary of Census Block 2002; thence along the westerly boundary of Census Block 2002 in a northerly direction to its intersection with State Route 6 (West River Road); thence along Route 6 (West River Road) in a westerly direction to its intersection with State Route 646 (Hardware Road); thence along Route 646 (Hardware Road) in a southerly direction to its intersection with Census Block 2003; thence along the southerly boundary of Census Block 2003 in an easterly direction to its intersection with Rockfish Creek; thence down Rockfish Creek to its intersection with the James River; Route 618 (Lake Monticello Road), thence in a northerly direction with Route 618 (Lake Monticello Road) approximately 2,400 feet to its intersection with the eastern property line of 557 Jefferson Drive (Tax Map Parcel 18A-5-235), thence in a southeasterly direction with the eastern property line of 557 Jefferson Drive (Tax Map Parcel 18A-5-235) to the intersection of Jefferson Drive and Lafayette Drive, thence in a southeasterly direction with Lafayette Drive to its intersection with Northwood Road, thence in a southerly direction with Northwood Road to its intersection with Jefferson Drive, thence in an easterly direction with Jefferson Drive to its intersection with Slice Road, thence in an easterly direction with Slice Road to its intersection with Route 600 (South Boston Road) and following Route 600 (South Boston Road) in a southerly direction its intersection with Route 53 (Thomas Jefferson Parkway), thence in an easterly direction with Route 53 (Thomas Jefferson Parkway) to its intersection with Route 619 (Ruritan Lake Road) and following Route 619 (Ruritan Lake Road) in a westerly direction to its intersection with Cunningham Creek, thence in a westerly direction with Cunningham Creek to its intersection with the power line right-of-way and following the power line right-of-way in a southeasterly direction to its intersection with Route 693 (Bell Farms Lane), thence in a westerly direction with Route 693 (Bell Farms Lane) to its intersection with Route 639 (Long Acre Road) and following Route 639 (Long Acre Road) in a southerly direction to its intersection with Haislip Lane, thence in a southwesterly direction with Haislip Lane to its intersection with Route 620 (Rolling Road) and following Route 620 (Rolling Road) in a westerly direction to its intersection with Route 669 (Kidde Dairy Road), thence in a

southerly direction along Route 669 (Kidds Dairy Road) to its intersection with Windy Ridge Lane and following Windy Ridge Lane in a southerly direction to its intersection with the Hardware River, thence in a southerly direction with the Hardware River to its intersection with the James River, thence in a westerly direction with the James River to its intersection with the Fluvanna-Albemarle County line, thence in a northerly direction with the Fluvanna-Albemarle County line to its intersection with Route 53 (Thomas Jefferson Parkway), the point of beginning.

Rivanna Election District - Number 5.

~~Beginning at the Fluvanna-Albemarle County line at its intersection with State Route 53 (Thomas Jefferson Parkway), following the Fluvanna-Albemarle County line in a northerly direction to its intersection with the Rivanna River, following the Rivanna River in a southeasterly direction until its intersection with the northerly boundary of Census Block 2034 to the intersection of Route 600, following Route 600 (South Boston Road) in a southerly direction to its intersection with Route 53 (Thomas Jefferson Parkway); thence along Route 53 (Thomas Jefferson Parkway) in a westerly direction to its intersection with Turkeysag Trail; thence along Turkeysag Trail in a northerly direction to its intersection with Bridlewood Drive; thence along Bridlewood Drive in a northerly direction to its intersection with Windy Way; thence along Windy Way in a northerly direction to its intersection with Turkeysag Trail; thence along Turkeysag Trail in a northerly direction to its intersection with Jefferson Drive; thence along Jefferson Drive in a northerly direction to its intersection with Boston Creek; thence along Boston Creek in a westerly direction to its intersection with State Route 53 (Thomas Jefferson Parkway); thence along Route 53 (Thomas Jefferson Parkway) in a westerly direction to its intersection with the Fluvanna-Albemarle County line, the point of beginning. Beginning at the intersection of Jefferson Drive and Lafayette Drive⁸ and following Jefferson Drive in an easterly (clockwise) direction around Lake Monticello to its intersection with Northwood Road, thence in a northerly direction with Northwood Road to its intersection with Lafayette Drive, thence in a westerly direction with Lafayette Drive to its intersection with Jefferson Drive, the point of beginning.~~

(Min. Bk. 6, pp. 482-484; Comp. 1974, ch. 2; Ord. 7-1-81; Ord. 5-15-91; Ord. 5-16-01)

Sec. 2-2-5. Supervisors elected biennially; terms.

The members of the county board of supervisors shall be elected biennially for four-year terms. (Comp. 1974, ch. 2; Ord. 5-16-01)

Sec. 2-2-6. One supervisor elected from each district.

One supervisor shall be elected from each election district established by this article, ~~except that there shall be two supervisors elected from the Rivanna District, the terms of which supervisors shall not be coterminous.~~ (Min. Bk. 6, pp. 482-484; Comp. 1974, ch. 2; Ord. 7-1-81; Ord. 5-15-91; Ord. 5-16-01)

⁸ Editor's Note – The original incorrectly stated Lafayette Road, when the proper name is in fact Lafayette Drive. The editor has corrected this clerical error.

(2) The effective date of the new election districts and corresponding precincts, as set forth herein, shall be in accordance with Virginia Code Section 24.2-311. The following schedule shall control the elections for Board of Supervisors and the School Board:

Board of Supervisors:

Palmyra District	Term ends 12/31/11	2011 Election
Columbia District	Term ends 12/31/13	2013 Election
Fork Union District	Term ends 12/31/11	2011 Election
Cunningham District	Term ends 12/31/13	2013 Election
Rivanna District	Term ends 12/31/13	2013 Election (Chesser)
	Term ends 12/31/11	Seat Eliminated (Fairchild)

School Board:

Palmyra District	Term ends 12/31/11	2011 Election
Columbia District	Term ends 12/31/13	2013 Election
Fork Union District	Term ends 12/31/11	2011 Election
Cunningham District	Term ends 12/31/13	2013 Election
Rivanna District	Term ends 12/31/13	2013 Election (Phillips)
	Term ends 12/31/11	Seat Eliminated (Gibbons)